
Agenda 
BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
BOARD ROOM – 300 B Street 

June 15, 2022 
6:00 p.m. Closed Session 

7:00 p.m. Estimated Open Session 
 

District LCAP Goals 
 Goal 1 – Biggs Unified will provide conditions of learning that will develop College and Career Ready students. Priority 1, 2 and 7. 
 Goal 2 – Biggs Unified will plan programs, develop plans, and provide data from assessments that will maximize pupil outcomes. Priority 4 and 

8. 
 Goal 3 – Biggs Unified will promote students engagement and a school culture conducive to learning. Priority 3, 5 and 6. 

 
 
 
OPEN SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Pgs 4-8 A.  May 4, 2022 Regular meeting  
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 

1. Public Employment Appointment of Personnel as listed under “Personnel Action” below; Pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54957 

2. Classified, Certificated, Classified Confidential, and Management Personnel Discipline, Dismissal and/or Release; 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 

3. Public Employee Performance Evaluation of Classified, Certificated, Classified Confidential, Management and 
Superintendent; Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 

4. Litigation; Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 
5. Instructions to Board Negotiators, Superintendent and Board Member; Pursuant to Government Code Section 

54957.6(a) 
 
If Closed Session is not completed before 7:00 p.m., it will resume immediately following the open session/regular meeting. 
 
 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 
1. ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
2.    PARENT ASSOCIATIONS REPORTS 
 
3.   CLASSIFIED SCHOOL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION (CSEA) and BIGGS UNIFIED TEACHERS ASSOCIATION (BUTA) REPORTS 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Anyone wishing to address the Board on items on or off the agenda may do so at this time. No action may be taken on 
items that are not listed as Action Items. Comments are limited to 3-5 minutes and 20 minutes each subject matter. 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

1 of 60



A. LCAP Plan (Under separate cover) 
 
B. 2022/2023 Original Budget (Under separate cover) 

 
6. REPORTS  (Pursuant to the Brown Act: Gov. Code 854950 et.seq. - Reports are limited to announcements or  brief 
 descriptions of individual activities) 
 

A. ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PRINCIPAL’S REPORT 
 

B. HIGH SCHOOL PRINCIPAL’S REPORT 
 
C. M/O/T AND FOOD SERVICE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
D. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 

 
E. CHIEF BUSINESS OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
 1.  2022-2023 Original Budget 
 
F. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 

 
7.   CONSENT AGENDA  
 

All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are routine and will be acted upon by one motion and vote. If an item 
needs further clarification and/or discussion, it may be removed from the Consent portion of the agenda and then be 
acted upon as a separate item. 

 
Pg. 9 A. Inter-district Agreement Request(s) for the 2022/2023 school year 

 
8.   ACTION ITEMS 
 

Pg. 10 A. Adopt Resolution 2021/2022 #13 - Ordering Governing Board Member Election 
 
 Resolutions #13, 14 and 15 are mandatory to conduct Board of Trustees elections in the fall.  The  Superintendent 
 recommends adoption. 

 
Pg. 11 B. Adopt Resolution 2021/2022 #14 - Regarding Costs of Candidates’ Statements 

 
 The Superintendent recommends adoption. 
 

Pg. 12 C. Adopt Resolution 2021/2022 #15 - Establishing Procedure in Case of Tie Vote at Governing Board Election 
 
 The Superintendent recommends adoption. 
 

Pgs. 13-19 D. Approve Agreement with BCOE Expanded Learning Program effective July 1, 2022 
 

Pgs. 20-26 E. Approve Ag Incentive Grant Application for 2022/23 
 

Pgs. 27-28 F. Approve Education Protection Account (EPA) expenses 
 
 The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 
G. Approve 2022/2023 Designation of CIF Representatives to League 
 
 The Superintendent recommends approval of the following representatives: Doug Kaelin and Scott Otis  
 

Pgs. 29-35 H. Approve Agreement with CSEA Bargaining Unit for the 2022/2023 school year and Salary Schedule. 
 

Pgs.36-42  I. Approve Agreement with BUTA Bargaining Unit for 2022/2023 school year and Salary Schedule. 
2 of 60



 
Pgs. 43-49 J. Approve Agreement with Confidential Classified Unit and Salary Schedule for 2022-2023 school year. 

 
Pg. 50 K. Approve Certificated Management Salary Schedule for 2022-2023 school year.   

 
Pg. 51 L. Approve Superintendent Contract and Salary Schedule 2022-2023 

 
Pgs. 52-58 M. Approve CBO Contract and Salary Schedule 2022-2023 

 
Pgs. 59-60 N. Approve contract of Scott Otis as High School Principal for 2022-2023 school year 

 
9.   PERSONNEL ACTION 
 

A. Approve hiring Scott Otis as High School Principal effective July 1, 2022 
 
B. Approve hiring of Misty Vargas and Katie Cyr as Short-term Summer Lt. Maintenance/Custodian positions.     
 
C. Accept resignation of Michaela Haemmig as BHS English Teacher effective June 30, 2022 
 
D. Approve hiring Justine Speegle as BES Multi Subject Teacher effective August 1, 2022 
 
E. Approve hiring Biggs High School Ag Teacher effective July 1, 2022 – Name to be announced at meeting 
 
F. Accept resignation of Roscoe Deel as Boys Head JV Basketball Coach effective May 23, 2022. 
 
G. Approve hiring Boys Varsity Basketball coach for the 2022/2023 season – Name to be announced at meeting 
 
H. Approve hiring Travis Smith as Bus Driver/Custodian/Light Maintenance effective August 9, 2022 
 
I. Approve hiring Ashleigh Aldridge as the BHS SST Coord. and BHS Testing Coord. for the 2021/2022 school year. 
 
J. Approve Stipend List for the 2022-2023 School Year. 

        
  1. BHS SST Coord.   Ashleigh Aldridge 
  2. BHS Testing Coord.  Ashleigh Aldridge 
  3. BES Student Coun. Adv.   Javier Solis       
  4. CJSF Advisor   Beth Chavez      

  5. BES Testing Coord. (SBAC) LaQuita Ulrich 
 
K. Accept resignation of Charity Holliman as BES Lead Teacher for 2022/2023 school year. 
         

10.   INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
11. FUTURE ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION  
 
12.   ADJOURNMENT 
 
Notice to the Public:  Please contact the Superintendent’s Office at 868-1281 ext. 8100 should you require a disability-
related modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting.  This request should be received at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting in order to accommodate your request. 

3 of 60



Minutes 
BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 MAY 4, 2022 

OPEN SESSION 

CALL TO ORDER – President Phillips called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 

ROLL CALL - Board members present: Jonna Phillips, Linda Brown, Kathryn Sheppard, America Navarro and 
Dennis Slusser were present. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – President Phillips lead the Pledge of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

The Board approved the agenda as amended with additions of Personnel Action Items 9G - Accept resignation 
of Tanisha Norvell as Ag Teacher effective November 11, 2022; Item 9H - Accept resignation of Alex Wroten as 
Bus Driver, Custodian, Light Maintenance effective April 30, 2022; Item 9I -Approve hiring Alex Wroten as Bus 
Driver, Custodian, Grounds effective May 1, 2022; and Item 9J -Approve hiring Channing Cornell as a High 
School Substitute Teacher for the 2021/2022 school year.  MSCU (Navarro/Sheppard) 5/0 

Slusser – Aye Navarro – Aye Brown – Aye Sheppard – Aye  Phillips – Aye 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The Board approved the minutes from the April 6, 2022 regular Board meeting as written. MSCU 
(Sheppard/Navarro) 5/0 
Slusser – Aye   Navarro – Aye   Brown – Aye   Sheppard – Aye  Phillips – Aye 

The Board adjourned into Closed Session at 6:04 pm 

CLOSED SESSION 

1. Public Employment Appointment of Personnel as listed under “Personnel Action” below; Pursuant to
Government Code Section 54957

2. Classified, Certificated, Classified Confidential, and Management Personnel Discipline, Dismissal and/or
Release; Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957

3. Public Employee Performance Evaluation of Classified, Certificated, Classified Confidential, Management
and Superintendent; Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957

4. Instructions to Board Negotiators, Superintendent and Board Member; Pursuant to Government
Code Section 54957.6(a)

5. Litigation; Pursuant to Government Code Sections 54956.9

Closed Session was adjourned at 7:12 pm and reconvened to Open Session. 

Staff Present: Doug Kaelin, Superintendent; Tyler Rutledge, Principal Biggs High School; La Quita Ulrich, Principal 
Biggs Elementary Schools and Moneek Graves, Fiscal Assistant 

4 of 60

Item 5A



ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION – President Phillips reported that the Board gave 
the Superintendent a positive review.  No other action was taken in closed session. 

 
PARENT ASSOCIATIONS REPORTS – No Parent Association reports. 
 
CLASSIFIED SCHOOL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION (CSEA) and BIGGS UNIFIED TEACHERS ASSOCIATION (BUTA) 
REPORTS -  No report for CSEA or BUTA.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
 
Joslynn Navarro gave a presentation on why Biggs High School should stay on a 7 periods instead of going to 6.  
(SEE ATTACHED) 
 
Ms. Aldridge presented; originally they saw the benefits to a 6 period day. With more insight realized it would 
take away the pathways options, and electives. Although the cons to 7 periods, it puts transferring students 
behind in credits, possibly changing the Board Policy regarding transfers and credits needed. Discuss that 
further. 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
The hearing for the Resolution regarding Increasing School Facilities Fees was opened at 7:15 p.m.  
Superintendent Kaelin reviewed the process with the Board and public.  There was no public comment.  The 
hearing closed at 7:17 p.m. 
 
REPORTS:  
 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PRINCIPAL’S REPORT: 
Principal Ulrich gave the report: 

• Planning for next year: Universal Design TK-5th grade training for staff, Get Reading Write, TK- 3rd staff 
training. Intervention program and what that could look like when Personius is out.  

• ABS kids update.  
• State testing lowering questions to 23-28 instead of in the 50s. 
• Rojelio was a huge success 
• Teacher Holly Perkins is working on next years special events calendar 

 
HIGH SCHOOL PRINCIPAL’S REPORT: 
Principal Rutledge gave the report: 

• FFA Update – FFA Butte Co Fair entries opened. 
• Officer interviews, 2 Players for Loins All Star, Riley (small league) Cody (large league)  
• ASB elections, Prom Saturday May 7th.  
• Vince Sormano was recognized at Teacher of the Year Dinner. Tyler gave an extra thank you to Mr. 

Sormano for always being a face for students. Anytime he is not in a class he is outside his class talking 
to, encouraging and complementing students as they walk by. Has a great way communicating with 
difficult students and overall is very much appreciated. 
 

M/O/T/, FOOD SERVICE and SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT: 
Superintendent Kaelin gave the report: 

• Planning summer projects and planning/prepping for graduations. 

5 of 60



• Working on the Universal TK Program report.  Must go to the State in June. 
• MOT- Bus update 2 out at shops. 2 maintance trucks had Cadillac converters stolen. Plan to add 

additional lighting and camera’s in one area that does not currently have any to prevent further theft.  
• Cafeteria: Grant for $97k was approved, we will pay $8k to receive the money. Also a $30k dishwasher 

grant is being looked into.  
• Grounds: Graduation, summer projects. ESSER$ and the new shade structures.   
• Ag Teacher resigned at end of FMLA leave, Nov 11. Giving us the opportunity to hire someone now and 

put Ms. Norvell on special assignment until November.  
• Budget and updated the LCAP. 

 
BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:   Nothing from the Board 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  
 
The Board approved the Consent Agenda Items A - C.  MSCU (Sheppard/Brown) 5/0 
Slusser – Aye   Navarro – Aye   Brown – Aye   Sheppard – Aye  Phillips – Aye 

 
 A. Inter-district Agreement Request(s) for the 2022/2023 school year 

B. Approve Confidential Staff Summer Schedule of four 10 hour days starting June 5, 2022. 
 C. Approve Purchase Order & Vendor Warrants for February 1st through April 22nd, 2022 

 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
The Board approved Action Items A - N.  MSCU (Slusser/Navarro) 5/0 
Slusser – Aye   Navarro – Aye   Brown – Aye   Sheppard – Aye  Phillips – Aye 
 

A. Re-Schedule June board meeting to June 15, 2022 and 2nd meeting June 29, 2022 – June 15th meeting 
start at 6:30pm.  June 29th time will be set at the June 15th meeting.  President Phillips and Members 
Navarro, Sheppard and Slusser will be out of town on June 29th.  Working on possibly setting up zoom or 
phone meeting. 

 
 B. Adopt revised 2022/2023 District Calendar moving week of Spring Break from April 17th to April 10th, 

2023 
 

 C. Approve Resolution 2021/2022 #10 – Increasing School Facilities Fees 
 
D. Approve FFA overnight field trip to San Luis Obispo for Cal Poly State Field Day, May 6th & 7th, 2022 - 
REMOVED 
 

 E. Adopt Resolution 2021/2022 #11 Notice of Participation in BSSP Workers Compensation Program 
effective July 1,  2022 
 

 F. Approve Participating Program Members statement to participate in the North Bay Schools Insurance 
Authority  per BSSP Resolution 22-01, Resolution of the Governing Board of the BSSP JPA to Become a 
Member of North Bay  Schools Insurance Authority And To Join Its Workers’ Compensation Program, 
For The Benefit Of Its Participating  Members, And Participating Members’ Statement Of Agreement 

 G.    Approve Application for Certificate of Consent to Self-Insure as a Public Agency Employer Self-Insurer 

6 of 60



This form is required by the Department of Industrial Relations, Office of Self-Insurance Plans (DIR OSIP), 
to move from the NVSIG to BSSP joint powers authority self-insured pool. 

 H.    Adopt Resolution 2021/22 #12, Resolution Authorizing Application To The Director Of Industrial 
 Relations, State Of California For A Certificate Of Consent To Self-Insure Workers' Compensation 
 Liabilities 

This resolution is required by the DIR OSIP to accompany the document in G, above.   

 I. 2021 Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) for Richvale School  
 
 J. Approve Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators  

 
 This action allows the District to assign teachers out of their credential subject matter if absolutely 

necessary.  The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 

K.  Superintendent Evaluation 
 

 L. Approve three year contract with Independent Audit Consultant, Christy White, CPA  
 

 M. Adopt Universal Prekindergarten Planning and Implementation Grant Program 
 

 N. Approve the Biggs Elementary 2021-2022 Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA) - ADDED 
 
PERSONNEL ACTION 
 
The Board approved Personnel Action Items A - J.  MSCU (Navarro/Brown) 4/1 
Slusser – Nay   Navarro – Aye   Brown – Aye   Sheppard – Aye  Phillips – Aye 

 
A. Approve Hiring Connor McGee as an Intern Math Teacher for Biggs High School for the 2022/2023 
school year. 
 
B. Accept Resignation of Thane Harrington as Bus/Grounds/Custodian effective April 29, 2022 
 
C. Accept Resignation of Chaz McKiernan as temporary Grounds effective April 22, 2022 
 
D. Approve Stipend List for 2022/2023 School Year 
  1.  Tim Sheridan – Varsity Girls Basketball Coach 
  2.  Michelle Felkins – Softball Coach 
  3.  Michelle Felkins – Varsity Volleyball Coach 
  4.  Michelle Felkins – JV Volleyball Coach 
  5.  Adam Sharrock - ASB Advisor 
  6.  Charity Holliman – BES Lead Teacher 
  7.  Hollie Byers – BES Results Coordinator 
  8.  Hollie Byers – BES Soccer 
  9.  Jill Pearson – RES Lead Teacher 
 
E. Teacher Appreciation Week - The Superintendent recommends that the Board declare the week of May 

2 - 6, 2022 as Teacher Appreciation Week.  On National Teacher Day, May 3, 2022, thousands of 

7 of 60



communities take time to honor their local educators and acknowledge the crucial role teachers play in 
making sure every student receives a quality education. 

 
F. Classified School Employee Week - The Superintendent recommends that the Board declare the week 

of May 15 - 21, 2022 as Classified Employee Week.  Classified school employees play crucial roles in 
education. From transporting and feeding students to teaching them vital skills and ensuring that 
schools are operating smoothly, classified employees are integral to public education. 

 
G. Accept resignation of Tanisha Norvell as Ag Teacher effective November 11, 2022 – ADDED 
 
H. Accept resignation of Alex Wroten as Bus Driver, Custodian, Light Maintenance effective April 30, 

2022 – ADDED 
 
I. Approve hiring Alex Wroten as Bus Driver, Custodian, Grounds effective May 1, 2022 – ADDED 
 
J. Approve hiring Channing Cornell as a High School Substitute Teacher for the 2021/2022 school year. - 

ADDED 
 

INFORMATION ITEMS –   
 

 A. LCAP Update – under Superintendent report. 
 
FUTURE ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION – President Phillips would like to have Student of the Month put back on the 
Board Agenda for all Biggs schools. 
 
ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION – 7:54 p.m. 
 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION - 8:31 p.m. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION – President Phillips announced no action was taken 
during Closed Session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT – 8:32 p.m. 
 
MINUTES APPROVED AND ADOPTED: 
 
_____________________________________  ____________________________ 
 Presiding President     Date 
 
Distribution:  Board of Trustees, Superintendent, Elementary School Principal, Financial Officer/Administrative  Advisor, BUTA and CSEA Presidents, 
Student Representative, Student Government Class, Gridley Herald, District Office and Schools for Posting, and Official Record. 

8 of 60



BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Meeting Date:  June 15, 2022 

Item Number: 
Item Title: Inter-district Agreement Request(s) 
Presenter:   Doug Kaelin, Superintendent & Donna Cyr, Admin. Assistant/HR Officer 
Attachment:   None 
Item Type:   [X] Consent Agenda  [ ] Action  [ ] Report  [ ] Work Session   [ ] Other: 

Background/Comments: 

We have received the following interdistrict transfer requests.  After reviewing each one with Board Policy and 
Administration Regulations 5117, we make the following recommendations.   

2022-2023 School Year From: To: Action New/Ongoing: 

1. (12th grade Oroville Biggs Accept Ongoing 
2. (5th grade) Biggs Oroville Released Ongoing 
3. (4th grade) Biggs Oroville Released Ongoing 
4. (5th grade) Biggs Palermo Released Ongoing 
5. (7th grade) Biggs Palermo Released Ongoing 
6. (11th grade) Biggs Gridley Released Ongoing 
7. (8th grade) Biggs Manzanita Released Ongoing 
8. (1st grade) Biggs Manzanita Released Ongoing 
9. (10th grade) Biggs Gridley Denied New 
10. (6th grade) Biggs Gridley Released New 
11. (1st grade) Biggs Gridley Released New 
12. (9th grade) Biggs Gridley Released Ongoing 
13. (2nd grade) Biggs Manzanita Released Ongoing 
14. (2nd grade) Biggs Manzanita Denied Ongoing 
15. (TK grade) Biggs Manzanita Denied New 
16. (2nd grade) Biggs Gridley Released Ongoing 
17. (5th grade) Biggs Gridley Released Ongoing 
18. (6th grade) Biggs Thermalito Released New 
19. (4th grade) Biggs Thermalito Released New 

Fiscal Impact:  We will have a loss of ADA for those outgoing transfer requests and an increase of ADA for those 
incoming transfer requests. 

Recommendation:   The Superintendent recommends action as indicated.   

9 of 60

7A



ORDER OF ELECTION 
(Education Code Sections 5000, 5018, 5304, and 5322) 

Resolution 2021/2022 # 13 

RESOLUTION ORDERING GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER ELECTION 

WHEREAS, the regular biennial election of Governing Board members is ordered by law pursuant to Section 
5000 of the Education Code to fill offices of Governing Board members of the Biggs Unified School District of 
Butte County, now be it 

RESOLVED that, the County Superintendent of Schools for this county call the election as ORDERED and in 
accordance with the designations contained in the following Specifications of the Election Order made under 
the authority of Education Code Sections 5304 and 5322. 

SPECIFICATIONS OF THE ELECTION ORDER 
The election shall be held on Tuesday, November 8, 2022.   

The purpose of the election is to elect __3__ members of the governing board of the Biggs Unified School 
District 

Offices Subject to Election: __3___Members 4 year terms 
Kathryn Sheppard, M. America Navarro and Dennis Slusser 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the clerk or secretary of the  Biggs Unified School District Governing 
Board shall deliver not less than 123 days prior to the date set for the election, one (1) copy to the officer 
conducting the election. 

The foregoing Resolution and Order was adopted by a formal vote of the  Biggs Unified School District 
Governing Board of Butte County, being the board authorized by law to make the designations therein 
contained on  June 15, 2022  . 

Signed: 
(Clerk/Secretary of the Governing Board) 

Instructions:  After the Order of Election is adopted by the board, the clerk or secretary should sign the Order and deliver two (2) 
copies to the County Superintendent of Schools and one (1) to the officer conducting the election, not less than 123 days prior to the 
date set for the election (Election Code 5322).  One (1) of these copies is to be delivered by the County Superintendent to the County 
Clerk or Registrar of Voters, with a copy of the Notice of Election, at least 120 days prior to the day of election (Education Code 
5324). 

Instruction:  If the election is called under Education Code Section 5018 insert: 

"Another purpose is to measure whether the number of members of the governing board of District shall be increase from three 
to five." 
And 
"Another purpose of the election shall be to elect two additional members of the governing board of 

District to serve if the above measure is approved." 

Remaining Board Members: Jonna Phillips and Linda Brown (Term expires 2024) 

10 of 60

Item 8A



RESOLUTION # 2021/2022 #14 
REGARDING COSTS OF CANDIDATES' STATEMENTS 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Elections Code § 13307 - 133307.5, each candidate for elective office 
may prepare a candidate's statement for inclusion in the voter's pamphlet. 

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED by the  Biggs Unified   Governing Board, that each 
candidate for a position on the Governing Board shall be required to pay his or her pro rata share 
of the cost of printing, handling, translating and mailing of the candidate's statement filed 
pursuant to California Elections Code § 13307 - 133307.5, in accordance with said section for 
the General Election to be held on November 8, 2022. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board this  15th  day of  June , 2022 by the 
following vote: 

AYES:  
(Board Member’s Names) 

NOES:     
(Board Member’s Names) 

ABSENT: 
(Board Member’s Names) 

ABSTENTION: 
(Board Member’s Names) 

(President of the Governing Board) 

ATTEST: 

By: 
(Secretary to the Board) 

11 of 60

Item 8B



RESOLUTION # 2021/2022 #15 

ESTABLISHING PROCEDURE  

IN CASE OF TIE VOTE AT GOVERNING BOARD ELECTION 

WHEREAS,  3 _members of __Biggs Unified School District Governing Board are to be elected at the 

November 8, 2022 election; and 

WHEREAS, Education Code Section 5304 provides that the Governing Board has the duty to resolve tie votes 

in governing board elections; and 

WHEREAS, Education Code Section 5016 provides that the Governing Board may either call a runoff election 

or determine the winner or winners by lot. 

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED that, in the event a tie vote makes it impossible to determine which of two 

or more candidates has been elected to the Governing Board, the winner shall be determined by lot. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Biggs Unified School District  Governing Board, this  15th day of 

June , 2022 

 by the following vote: 

AYES:  
(Board Member’s Names) 

NOES:  
(Board Member’s Names) 

ABSENT: 
(Board Member’s Names) 

ABSTENTION: 
(Board Member’s Names) 

(President of the Governing Board) 

ATTEST: 

By_____________________________________ 
              (Secretary to the Board) 

Remaining Board Members:  Jonna Phillips and Linda Brown 
12 of 60

Item 8C



AGREEMENT FOR SPECIAL SERVICES BETWEEN LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCIES 

This Agreement for Services (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of June 15, 
2022 by and between the Butte County Office of Education (“BCOE”) and Biggs Unified 
School District (“AGENCY”), (together, “Parties”). 

The terms of this Agreement are as follows: 

1. Purpose.  The duties, obligations and agreements to provide the services under this
Agreement are set forth in the attached Exhibit "A” (“Services”).

2. Term.  Services shall commence on July 1, 2022 and will continue until June 30, 2023,
unless this Agreement is terminated and/or otherwise cancelled prior to that time.

3. Payment.  Compensation shall be as set forth in Exhibit “B” as the proposed fee for
Services.

4. Termination.  Either party may, at any time, with or without reason, terminate this
Agreement with a reasonable explanation.  Written notice by the terminating party shall
be sufficient to stop further provision of Services. Notice shall be deemed given when
received by the non-terminating party or no later than three (3) days after the day of
mailing, whichever is sooner.

5. Additional Services. In the event either Party requires services from the other Party in
addition to those set forth in this Agreement, the Party requiring additional services shall
compensate the other Party for costs incurred by those additional services. If either Party
believes that additional services are necessary or desirable, that Party shall submit a
written description of the additional services to the other Party, along with the reasons
the additional services are required or reasonable, and the specific cost of the additional
services. Such services shall be performed only after both Parties agree in writing to
proceed with the additional services.

6. Indemnification.  The AGENCY agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless BCOE,
its officers, agents and employees against any claim, liability, loss, injury or damage
imposed on BCOE arising out of the AGENCY’s performance on this Agreement, except for
liability resulting from the negligent or willful misconduct of BCOE, its officers, agents and
employees. If obligated to indemnify, defend, or hold harmless BCOE under this
Agreement, the AGENCY shall reimburse BCOE for all costs, attorney’s fees, expenses and
liabilities associated with any resulting legal action. The AGENCY shall seek BCOE approval
of any settlement that could adversely affect the BCOE, its officers, agents or employees.

The BCOE agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless AGENCY, its officers, agents
and employees against any claim, liability, loss, injury or damage imposed on AGENCY
arising out of the BCOE’s performance on this Agreement, except for liability resulting
from the negligent or willful misconduct of AGENCY, its officers, agents and employees. If
obligated to indemnify, defend, or hold harmless AGENCY under this Agreement, the BCOE
shall reimburse AGENCY for all costs, attorney’s fees, expenses and liabilities associated
with any resulting legal action. The BCOE shall seek AGENCY approval of any settlement
that could adversely affect the AGENCY, its officers, agents or employees.

7. Insurance.  Each party shall procure and maintain at all times insurance with minimum
limits as customary for that party’s course of business.

13 of 60

Item 8D



8. Anti-Discrimination.  It is the policy of the BCOE that in connection with all work 
performed under contracts there be no discrimination against any person engaged in the 
work because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, religious creed, physical disability, 
medical condition, marital status, sexual orientation, gender, or age and therefore 
Program Region agrees to comply with applicable Federal and California laws including, 
but not limited to the California Fair Employment and Housing Act beginning with 
Government Code Section 12900 and Labor Code Section 1735. 

9. No Rights in Third Parties.  This Agreement does not create any rights in, or inure to 
the benefit of, any third party except as expressly provided herein. 

10. Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be 
deemed to have been given, served, and received if given in writing and either personally 
delivered or deposited in the United States mail, registered or certified mail, postage 
prepaid, return receipt required, or sent by overnight delivery service, or facsimile 
transmission, addressed as follows: 

If to BCOE: 
 
Butte County Office of Education 
Attn: Julie Jarrett 
1859 Bird Street 
Oroville, CA 95965 
Email:  jjarrett@bcoe.org 

If to AGENCY: 
 
Biggs Unified School District  
Attn: Doug Kaelin - Superintendent  
300 B Street 
Biggs, CA 95917 
Email:  dkaelin@biggs.org 

 
Any notice personally given or sent by email transmission shall be effective upon receipt.  
Any notice sent by overnight delivery service shall be effective the business day next 
following delivery thereof to the overnight delivery service.  Any notice given by mail shall 
be effective five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail. 

11. Integration/Entire Agreement of Parties.  This Agreement constitutes the entire 
agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior discussions, negotiations, and 
agreements, whether oral or written.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only 
by a written instrument executed by both Parties. 

12. Assignment.  The obligations and/or interests of either party under this Agreement shall 
not be assigned or transferred in anyway without written consent from the other party. 

13. Arbitration.  The Parties agree that should any controversy or claim arise out of or 
relating to this Agreement they will first seek to resolve the matter informally for a 
reasonable period of time not to exceed forty-five (45) days. If the dispute remains, it 
shall be subject to mediation with a mediator agreed to by both parties and paid for by 
both parties, absent an agreement otherwise. If after mediation there is no resolution of 
the dispute, the parties agree to resolve the dispute by binding arbitration administered 
by the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”) in accordance with its Commercial 
Arbitration Rules, and judgment on an arbitrator’s award may be entered in any court 
having jurisdiction thereof. 

a. The Parties shall select one arbitrator pursuant to the AAA’s Commercial Arbitration 
Rules. 

14 of 60



b. The arbitrator shall present a written, well-reasoned decision that includes the 
arbitrator’s findings of fact and conclusions of law. The decision of the arbitrator 
shall be binding and conclusive on the Parties. 

c. The arbitrator shall have no authority to award punitive or other damages not 
measured by the prevailing Party’s actual damages, except as may be required by 
statute. The arbitrator shall have no authority to award equitable relief. Any 
arbitration award initiated under this clause shall be limited to monetary damages 
and shall include no injunction or direction to either Party other than the direction 
to pay a monetary amount. As determined by the arbitrator, the arbitrator shall 
award the prevailing Party, if any, all of its costs and fees. The term “costs and 
fees” includes all reasonable pre-award arbitration expenses, including arbitrator 
fees, administrative fees, witness fees, attorney’s fees and costs, court costs, travel 
expenses, and out-of-pocket expenses such as photocopy and telephone expenses. 
The decision of the arbitrator is not reviewable, except to determine whether the 
arbitrator complied with sections (b) and (c) of this section. 

14. COVID-19 Acknowledgement.  AGENCY recognizes and understands that guidance on 
how to protect oneself from the COVID-19 virus and how to avoid spreading the virus to 
others, is available at https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html and through federal, 
local, and state recommendations and/or regulations. AGENCY understands that this 
guidance can change, and that AGENCY has a responsibility to stay abreast of the changing 
information found on these COVID-19 guidance resources. AGENCY is encouraged to 
follow their district’s protocols and have enough school-appropriate cleaning supplies to 
continuously disinfect the equipment in accordance with California Department of Public 
Health (CDPH) guidance. 
 

15. California Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and the rights, duties and 
obligations of the Parties shall be determined and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of California.  The Parties further agree that any action or proceeding brought 
to enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be maintained in Butte County. 

16. Waiver.  The waiver by either party of any breach of any term, covenant, or condition 
herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant, condition, 
or any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or condition herein 
contained. 

17. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will 
nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 
invalidated in any way. 

18. Provisions Required By Law Deemed Inserted.  Each and every provision of law and 
clause required by law to be inserted in this Agreement shall be deemed to be inserted 
herein and this Agreement shall be read and enforced as though it were included therein. 

19. Authority to Bind Parties.  Neither party in the performance of any and all duties under 
this Agreement, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, has any authority to bind 
the other to any agreements or undertakings. 

20. Captions and Interpretations.  Paragraph headings in this Agreement are used solely 
for convenience, and shall be wholly disregarded in the construction of this Agreement.  
No provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted for or against a party because that 

15 of 60

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html


party or its legal representative drafted such provision, and this Agreement shall be 
construed as being jointly prepared by the Parties.  

21. Signature Authority.  Each party has the full power and authority to enter into and 
perform this Agreement, and the person signing this Agreement on behalf of each Party 
has been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement.   

22. Counterparts.  This Agreement and all amendments and supplements to it may be 
executed in counterparts, and all counterparts together shall be construed as one 
document. 

23. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits.  The Recitals and each exhibit attached hereto 
are hereby incorporated herein by reference. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date(s) indicated 
below. 

BCOE: 
 
Dated:       
 
BUTTE COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 
Signed By:       

Print Name: Mary Sakuma 

Title: Superintendent 

AGENCY: 
 
Dated:       
 
BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
    
Signed By:       

Print Name: Doug Kaelin 

Title:  Superintendent  

16 of 60



Exhibit "A” 
Scope of Services 

The BCOE Expanded Learning Program is dedicated to supporting the districts and school 
sites where we currently provide after school program services through the After School 
Education and Safety Program (ASES) to expand existing programs to serve more students. 

It is the intent that all local educational agencies offer all unduplicated pupils in classroom-
based instructional programs access to comprehensive after school and intersessional 
expanded learning opportunities. 

Expanded Learning programs shall include all of the following:  On schooldays, in-person 
after school expanded learning opportunities that, when added to daily instructional 
minutes, are no less than nine hours of combined instructional time.  In addition, for at 
least 30 nonschooldays, during intersessional periods, no less than nine hours of in-person 
Expanded Learning opportunities per day (summer enrichment).   

Menu of Contract Services : 

Site based Expanded Learning Programs will be provided each day that school is in session 
from the time the final school bells rings until 6:00 p.m. 

Costs for Expanding Existing ASES Program 

__1__ QTY $40,326 (does not include summer programming) 
Baseline Classroom (Grades 1 – 6) 
1 to 20 Staff to Student Ratio 
Classified Staff 

_____ QTY $55,072 (does not include summer programming) 
Classroom (Grades 1-6) 
1 to 20 Staff to Student Ratio 
Certificated Staff 

_____ QTY $40,326 (does not include summer programming 
Baseline Classroom (TK-K) 
1 to 10 Staff to Student Ratio 
Classified Staff 

_____ QTY $55,072 (does not include summer programming) 
Classroom (TK-K) 
1 to 10 Staff to Student Ratio 
Certificated Staff 

Costs includes:  Staffing, Administrative Costs, Enrollment/Attendance 
Tracking Software, Curriculum/Resource Purchases, Program Plan Template 
and Other Related Expenses 

Additional contract features may include bringing in outside entities to provide 
specific enrichment activities such as dance, art (cartooning, water colors, 
drama, etc), karate, music, etc.  Costs for these services will be determined 
on a case by case basis upon request of the LEA. 

17 of 60



 
July Costs for Intersessional and/or Summer Enrichment Programs 
 
Contract services below are for 15 nonschooldays, during intersessional periods and/or 
summer, no less than nine hours of in-person expanded learning opportunities per day. 
Please note that current ASES Summer Enrichment funding covers 15 days in June. 
 
Contract costs for districts partnering to provide summer school in the mornings (8:00 a.m. 
to 12 noon) and the BCOE Expanded Learning Program providing enrichment activities in 
the afternoons (12 noon to 5:00 p.m.). 
 
__3__ QTY $4,201 (12 noon to 5:00 p.m.) 
  Baseline Classroom (Grades 1-6) 
  1 to 20 Staff to Student Ratio 
  Classified Staff  
 
__1__ QTY $4,201 (12 noon to 5:00 p.m.) 
  Baseline Classroom (Grades TK-K) 
  1 to 10 Staff to Student Ratio 
  Classified Staff 
 

Additional contract features may include bringing in outside entities to provide 
specific enrichment activities such as dance, art specialties, karate, music, 
etc.  Costs for these services will be determined on a case by case basis. 

 
Additional costs are highlighted in the fee-for-services section. 
 
District Responsibilities: 
 

1. Snack/supper administration during the instructional school year.  Breakfast, lunch 
and snack during summer enrichment when CalKidz Program is unable to provide 
such service 

2. Sufficient space (classrooms, cafeteria, gym, etc.) to provide a safe and engaging 
program (one classroom/location for every 20 students being served) 

3. Custodial services 
4. Programming for students with special needs 
5. Provision of a school nurse or health aid, during the 30 nonschooldays, during 

intersessional periods and/or summer 
 
Additional Contract Provisions: 
 

1. BCOE will maintain ownership of curricula and technological devised procured with 
district funds to provide aforementioned services.  Items purchased with district 
funds will be used solely in that district and inventoried to meet audit and 
compliance guidelines. 

2. The district will hold BCOE harmless for unforeseen issues (COVID, nation-wide 
staffing shortage, etc.) that prevent the successful implementation, and ongoing 
provision of all Expanded Learning legislative, audit, and compliance requirements. 
 

 

18 of 60



Exhibit "B” 
Fee for Services 

 
 
2022 – 2023 Fiscal/School Year: 
 
Service Type      Cost  Qty  $ Total 
 
After School Expansion (Classified)   $40,326 1  $  40,326 

Grades 1 – 6/1 to 20 ratio 
After School Expansion (Certificated)  $55,072   $ 

Grades 1 – 6/1 to 20 ratio 
After School Expansion (Classified)   $40,326   $   
 Grades TK – K/1 to 10 ratio 
After School Expansion (Certificated)  $55,072   $ 
 Grades TK – K/1 to 10 ratio 
 
Summer Enrichment (12 Noon – 5:00 p.m.) $  4,201 3  $  12,603 
 Grades 1 – 6/Classified/1 to 20 ratio 
Summer Enrichment (12 Noon – 5:00 p.m.) $  4,201 1  $    4,201 
 Grades TK – K/Classified/1 to 10 ratio 
 
Annual Area Coordinator Support Fee (per site) $10,819 1  $  10,819 
 (No charge for Richvale) 
One-time Site Planning Fee(22/23 Contract Only) $  2,500 1  $    2,500 
 (No charge for Richvale) 
 
Total Contract Amount:        $  70,449 
 
With District approval, contract totals can be adjusted should additional students wish to 
participate in the program.   
 
District payment structure will replicate that of the California Department of Education’s 
After School Education and Safety Program (ASES): 
 
 Percentage of Total Contract Amount Due to BCOE Fiscal Department: 
 
 65%  Due within 30 days of signed contract. 
 
 25%  Due on or before February 1st of contract year. 
 
 10%  Due on or before June 1st of contract year. 
 
Current After School Education and Safety Program (ASES) Funding in the Biggs Unified 
School District: 
 
ASES provides after school funding to serve: 
 
111 - Students Per Day at Biggs Elementary/Middle 
19   - Students Per Day at Richvale 
 
ASES provides summer enrichment funds to cover 15 days of programming in June (Noon – 
5 p.m.).    

19 of 60



20 of 60

Item 8E



21 of 60



22 of 60



23 of 60



24 of 60



25 of 60



26 of 60



U:pragan/board/18-19 EPA 19/20 

BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
June 15, 2022 

Item Number: 

Item Title: Approve Education Protection Account (EPA) expenses 

Presenter: Lorelle Mudd, Chief Business Official 

Attachments:  Estimated Revenue and Expenditure exhibit 

Item Type: [ ] Consent Agenda [X] Action [ ] Report [ ] Work Session [ ] Public Hearing 

Background/Comments: 

Pursuant to Article XIII, Section 36 of the California Constitution, school districts, county offices of 
education and community college districts are required to determine how the moneys received from the 
Education Protection Account are spent in the school or schools within its jurisdiction, provided that the 
governing board makes the spending determinations in an open session of a public meeting.  The 
language in the constitutional amendment requires that funds shall not be used for the salaries and benefits 
of administrators or any other administrative costs. There is also a requirement that districts must annually 
post on its website an accounting of how much money was received from EPA and how that money was 
spent. 

Fiscal Impact: 

The EPA revenue estimate for Biggs USD for 2022/2023 is $727,723. These funds will be used to pay for 
teachers salaries. 

Recommendation: 

The Administration recommends the board approve the EPA estimate of revenue and how the revenue 
will be spent. 

27 of 60

8F



28 of 60



29 of 60

Item 8H



30 of 60



31 of 60



32 of 60



33 of 60



34 of 60



35 of 60



36 of 60

Item 8I



37 of 60



38 of 60



39 of 60



40 of 60



41 of 60



42 of 60



43 of 60

Item 8J



44 of 60



45 of 60



46 of 60



47 of 60



48 of 60



49 of 60



50 of 60

Item 8K



51 of 60

Item 8L



52 of 60

Item 8M



53 of 60



54 of 60



55 of 60



56 of 60



57 of 60



58 of 60



59 of 60

Item 8N



60 of 60


	Item 5A - 05-04-2022-Minutes
	Item 7A - Interdistrict Consent - PUBLIC
	Item 8A - Reso - 21-22 13ORDER OF ELECTION
	Item 8B - Reso 21-22 -14 Candidate Cost
	Item 8C - Reso 2021-22 15 Tie Vote Resolution
	Item 8D - Biggs 2022-2023 ELO-P FINAL
	AGREEMENT FOR SPECIAL SERVICES BETWEEN LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCIES

	Item 8E - Ag Incentive Grant Application
	Item 8F - 22-23 EPA funding requirements
	Item 8H - CSEA Contract and Salary Schedule 22-23
	Item 8I - BUTA Contract and Salary Schedule 22-23
	Item 8J - Class Confidential Contract and Salary Sched 22-23
	Item 8K - Certificated Management Salary Schedule 22-23
	Item 8L - Superintendent Salary Schedule 2022-23
	Item 8M - Mudd CBO Contract 2022-23
	Item 8N - Scott Otis BHS Principal Contract 22-23



